
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date: Friday, 26th September, 2003 

Time: 10.30 a.m. 

Place: No 1 Committee Room, Shirehall, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of 
the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

P. R. James, Members Services, 
Brockington, 35 Hafod Rd, Hereford 

tel (01432) 260460 e-mail: 
pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk 

  
 
County of Herefordshire 
District Council 





COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 26TH SEPTEMBER, 2003 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
for the Meeting of the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
To: Councillor J.H.R. Goodwin (Chairman) 

Councillor  W.L.S. Bowen (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 Councillors B.F. Ashton, P.J. Dauncey, G.W. Davis, Mrs. A.E. Gray, 

K.G. Grumbley, T.W. Hunt, R. Mills and J.W. Newman 
 

  
  
 Pages 
  

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     

 To receive apologies for absence.  

2. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     

 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in 
place of a Member of the Committee. 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 
the Agenda. 

 

4. MINUTES   1 - 8  

 To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 13th June, 2003  

5. HUMAN RESOURCES   9 - 14  

 To report on the sickness absence and other matters for the Environment 
Directorate. 

 

6. CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING   15 - 18  

 To advise Members on the progress of the 2003/04 Capital Programme for 
Environment Areas within the overall context of the Herefordshire Council 
Capital Programme. 

 

7. ENVIRONMENT REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING   19 - 28  

 To advise members of Budget Monitoring the position for the Environment 
Programme Area budgets for the period to 31st July 2003. 

 

8. BEST VALUE REVIEWS - IMPLEMENTATION OF IMPROVEMENT 
PLANS   

29 - 34  

 To report the exceptions of the programmed progress on the actions in the 
improvement plans resulting from the reviews of Public Rights of Way, 
Highway Maintenance and Public Conveniences. 

 



 

 
9. BEST VALUE REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL ENFORCEMENT - 

PROGRESS REPORT   
35 - 40  

 To consider the progress of the Commercial Enforcement Review.  

10. MONITORING OF 2003/2004 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - APRIL 
2003 TO JULY 2003   

41 - 44  

 To update Members on progress made by the Environment Directorate for 
the four months April to July 2003 towards achieving all of the performance 
indicators / targets which appear in the Council’s Performance Plan. 

 

 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\9\AI00001948\Agendainfosheets0.doc  16/09/03 

PUBLIC INFORMATION 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Education, 
Environment, Social Care and Housing and Social and Economic 
Development.  A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises Policy 
and Finance matters and co-ordinates the work of these 
Committees. 

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and 
transparency of the Council's decision making process. 

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to 
 
•  Help in developing Council policy 
 
• Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult 

questions before and after decisions are taken 
 
• Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been 

raised by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members 
of the public 

 
• "call in" decisions  - this is a statutory power which gives 

Scrutiny Committees the right to place a decision on hold 
pending further scrutiny. 

 
• Review performance of the Council 
 
• Conduct Best Value reviews  
 
• Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the 

public  
 
Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and 
information on your rights to attend meetings and access to 
information are set out overleaf 
 
 
 
 
 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\9\AI00001948\Agendainfosheets0.doc  16/09/03 

The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 

unless the business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or 
‘exempt' information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least three clear days before the date 
of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees 
and written statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members for up to six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a 
period of up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the 
background papers to a report is given at the end of each report).  A 
background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing 
the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all 
Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to 
items to be considered in public) made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have 
delegated decision making to their officers identifying the officers 
concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of 
access, subject to a reasonable charge (10p per sheet). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, its Committees and Sub-Committees and 
to inspect and copy documents. 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large print, Braille or 
on tape.  Please contact the officer named below in advance of the meeting 
who will be pleased to deal with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for visitors 
in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\9\AI00001948\Agendainfosheets0.doc  16/09/03 

Public Transport links 

Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via bus route 104 
shown in dark grey on the enclosed map. The service runs every half hour 
from the hopper bus station at Tesco's in Bewell St (next to the roundabout at 
the junction of Blueschool Street/Victoria St/Edgar St) and the nearest bus 
stop to Brockington is in Old Eign Hill near to its junction with Hafod Road. 
The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 
 

If you have any questions about this Agenda, how the Council works or would 
like more information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information 
described above, you may do so either by telephoning Mr Paul James on 
01432 260460 or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 
p.m. Monday - Thursday and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council 
Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\4\9\AI00001948\Agendainfosheets0.doc  16/09/03 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY 
EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

 

 
• IN CASE OF FIRE 

 
(no matter how small) 

 
 

1. Sound the Alarm 
 
2. Call the Fire Brigade 
 
3. Fire party - attack the fire with appliances available. 
 
 
 

• ON HEARING THE ALARM 
 
Leave the building by the nearest exit and proceed to assembly area on: 

 
• GAOL STREET CAR PARK 

 
Section Heads will call the roll at the place of assembly. 

 



COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

EnvSCminutes13.6.030.doc   

MINUTES of the meeting of Environment Scrutiny 
Committee held at the Shirehall, Hereford on Friday, 13th 
June, 2003 at 10.30 a.m. 
Present: Councillor J. H. R. Goodwin (Chairman) 
 Councillor W. L. S. Bowen (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 Councillors B. F. Ashton, Mrs A.E. Gray, K. G. Grumbley, B. Hunt, R. Mills, 

J. W. Newman 
In Attendance: Councillors P. J. Edwards (Cabinet Member – Environment, Planning 
& Waste Management), R. M. Wilson (Cabinet Member – Highways and 
Transportation). 

1. CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN 

The Committee noted that Council had appointed Councillor J. H. R. Goodwin as 
Chairman and Councillor W. L. S. Bowen as Vice-Chairman.   

The Chairman welcomed those present to the meeting and gave a brief outline of his 
perception of the role of scrutiny. He expressed the hope that members would be 
engaged and enthusiastic and that the work of the Committee would be to the benefit 
of the County.  

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillors G. W. Davis and T.W. Hunt. 

3. NAMED SUBSTITUTES 

Councillor B. Hunt substituted for Councillor T.W. Hunt. 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made. 

5. MINUTES 

In relation to the minutes of 27th March, number 66 – Environment Revenue Budget 
Monitoring - the Head of Engineering and Transportation made a brief correction to 
the information reported concerning residents parking schemes.  He reported that 
since July 2002 Local Authority Searches had included a set question relating to 
approved parking schemes.  He further reported that schemes were required to be 
locally publicised. 

RESOLVED: That subject to the above correction the Minutes of the meeting 
held on 19th March and 27th March, 2003, be approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

6. SCRUTINY – ROLE AND TECHNIQUES 

The Committee received a presentation on the role of scrutiny and the techniques 
that the Scrutiny Committees can use in their work. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

1



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 13TH JUNE, 2003
 

EnvSCminutes13.6.030.doc 

The Policy Officer briefly described the background to scrutiny and outlined some of 
the key principles and risks to effective scrutiny.  She advised in relation to 
questioning skills; the development of work programmes and highlighted the 10 steps 
to undertaking successful in-depth reviews.  She further advised that some issues 
could be investigated by methods other than by formal Committee or Select Style 
Committee e.g. task and finish groups, presentations, briefings or by meeting in other 
venues.  She summed up by directing members to a number of useful documents 
and websites. 

The Chairman thanked the Policy Officer for the informative presentation. 

RESOLVED: That the presentation be noted. 

7. HUMAN RESOURCES 

The Committee received a report on sickness absence for the Environment 
Directorate. 

The Personnel Manager (Well-being) reported upon the absence statistics for the 
Directorate which covered the period 1st April 2002 to 31st March 2003.  The 
appendix to the report indicated the number of people working in each division of the 
Directorate and the full time equivalent (FTE).  The next column indicated the FTE 
days lost for each division followed by the average days lost per FTE.  The appendix 
also indicated the number of FTE days lost for specific reasons and the number of 
jobs filled by people with disabilities.   

The Committee discussed the statistics and noted that managers received more 
detailed reports to enable them to closely monitor their sections.  It was noted that 
with a comparatively small number of staff in a section, one or two long-term 
sicknesses could greatly affect the overall statistics.  The Committee further noted 
that the report to the November meeting would contain annualised figures and that 
these could be used for comparison with other authorities. 

RESOLVED: That the report on sickness absence in the Environment 
Directorate be noted. 

8. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

Members were informed of the latest position with regard to the Environment Capital 
Programme for 2003/04. 

The Director of Environment reported that the total amount available for the Capital 
Programme was expected to be £10,451,720.  However this would be subject to 
adjustment as part of the 2002/2003 final accounts process.  Sums available to fund 
the Capital Programme from Basic Credit Approval (BCA) would all have to be spent 
and the invoices paid on or before 31st March, 2004.  The Programme would 
inevitably change during the year as the sums allocated for individual schemes were 
reviewed and revised. 

In the course of scrutinising the programme the following principal points were noted: 

• The Director reported that the Rotherwas Access Road scheme had obtained 
planning consent and that the Roman Road scheme was awaiting an 
environmental assessment.  Both schemes were on target. 

2



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 13TH JUNE, 2003
 

EnvSCminutes13.6.030.doc 

• Income shown from private developers normally related to income derived 
from Section 106 agreements. 

• In response to questions regarding ‘Quiet Lanes’, the Head of Engineering 
and Transportation reported upon an evaluation of potential pilot schemes in 
Herefordshire for which consultants ‘Halcrow’ were undertaking a survey.  He 
advised that the principal of the scheme was to establish a network of lanes 
attractive to pedestrians, cyclists and horse-riders.  Vehicular use would be 
discouraged but not prevented.  Consequentially any scheme proposed was 
likely to involve an intensive consultation process and would probably cost 
more than the limited funding available. 

RESOLVED: That the report on the Environment Capital Programme 2003/04 
be noted. 

9. ENVIRONMENT REVENUE BUDGET 2003/04 

The Committee were informed of the latest position with regard to the Environment 
Revenue Budget for 2003/2004 following the formal approval of the Council’s budget. 

The Director of Environment and the Assistant County Treasurer reported that the 
Council had approved a budget of £21,878,000 for the Environment Programme area 
which included allocations for Central Support Services.  The budget for 2003/04 
would be adjusted to take account of any carry forward from 2002/03.  In addition to 
the effect of inflation a number of additions had been made to the budget and these 
were listed in the report.  The Environment budgets for 2003/04 were attached to the 
report at appendix 1. While the out-turn for the 2002/3 budget was awaited, it was 
expected that the target budget would be meet. 

The Committee debated the 2003/4 budget and in response to questions regarding 
waste management; research into other methods of disposal and village collection 
schemes the Director acknowledged that waste management and disposal was a 
large and complicated subject.  He announced that the first in a series of member 
briefings would be organised on ‘Best Practical Environmental Option’ (BPEB) on 
Waste.  This would cover the issues of planning and land use.  The Director briefly 
described the current position regarding the Waste Management contract and 
commented that the consideration of other methods of waste disposal was ongoing.  
He reported that the Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) 
had been unsupportive of the fall-back position of transporting waste to a new facility 
at Heathrow and consequently the fall-back position would be re-considered.  He 
reported that while “bring sites” in villages were an important element of the collection 
process unfortunately due to the low volumes collected this could not be justified at 
the moment on cost grounds, particularly when compared to the cost of kerb-side 
collection in urban areas. 

The Committee noted that Development Control fees were set nationally by 
government.  The Chief Planning Services Officer reported that while the fees had 
recently risen by 14% and Herefordshire had benefited from an increase in planning 
applications, which had produced a reasonable income, this position could not be 
expected to continue. 

The Director reported that Cabinet had endorsed a draft programme of improvement 
work in the planning area to be funded by the Planning Delivery Grant. 

RESOLVED: That the report confirming the Environment Revenue Budget 
2003/04 be noted. 

3



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 13TH JUNE, 2003
 

EnvSCminutes13.6.030.doc 

10. PAYMENT OF UNDISPUTED INVOICES WITHIN 30 DAYS 

The Committee considered the performance against this performance indicator 
during the financial year 2002/2003. 

The Assistant County Treasurer (Accountancy & Exchequer Services) presented a 
report detailing the Directorate‘s performance in achieving the 100% government 
target.  He reported that the annual percentage for Environment was 86.9% 
compared with 79.4% in 2001/02 but that the performance figures for the last 6 
months of 2002/3 had each exceeded 92% with the exception of the Christmas 
period. 

During debate on the level of performance against the target it was noted that 
payment of undisputed invoices had dropped during both Christmas and summer 
periods.  This suggested that there was a personnel issue which needed 
investigation. 

RESOLVED: That subject to the comment above the report be noted. 

11. BEST VALUE REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL ENFORCEMENT – PROGRESS 
REPORT 

The Committee considered progress in relation to the Commercial Enforcement 
Review and were invited to consider the member representation on the Challenge 
Panel for the review. 

The Best Value Officer reported that the Stage 1 Report covering data collection had 
been approved in April 2002.  Some progress had been made on collecting and 
analysing information from benchmarking and consultation activities.  However, a 
delay had occurred in progressing the review.  This had been due to a shift in 
priorities for officers on the review team who had been involved in the recent 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA) and EFQM Assessments, and 
activities relating to the rolling out of the modernisation agenda and Customer 
Relations Management (CRM) initiative.  He reported that the review timetable had 
been revised with the Option Appraisal stage being scheduled for completion in time 
to report to the Committee in September 2003.  Representation by members was 
sought on the challenge panel of the review team. 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and Councillor B.F. Ashton and 
Councillor R. Mills be appointed as the Committee 
representatives on the challenge panel of the review team. 

12. BEST VALUE REVIEWS – IMPLEMENTATION OF IMPROVEMENT PLANS 

The Committee received a report on the exceptions to the programmed progress on 
the actions in the improvement plans resulting from the reviews of Development 
Control, Public Rights of Way, Highway Maintenance and Public Conveniences. 

The Director of Environment reported that exceptions to the programmed actions had 
been listed in appendix 1 to the report. 

During discussion of the exceptions report the following principal comments were 
made: 

• In relation to Development Control the Chief Planning Services Officer 
reported that budget aspects identified in the review had been restructured.  

4



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 13TH JUNE, 2003
 

EnvSCminutes13.6.030.doc 

However, staff time sheets were being processed to enable a more detailed 
breakdown of costs between functions. 

• Issues concerning Public Conveniences were progressing.  Current 
consultation with Town Councils so far indicated little enthusiasm in relation to 
changes in operational aspects.  The Director reported that the Improvement 
Plan had been drawn up and acknowledged that a further report on progress 
was required.   

• The Committee noted that due to the impact of Foot and Mouth Disease a 
number of targets in relation to Public Rights of Way had not been met.  
However, the Head of Engineering and Transportation was confident that 
many of the outstanding issues would be addressed in the next few months. 

• In response to questions on Highway Maintenance the Head of Engineering 
and Transportation reported that a number of new contracts or partnership 
agreements were being looked at which would introduce innovative methods 
of working.  Progress with IT systems, for both Highways and Environmental 
Health, was part of a corporate process which would include information from 
other Directorates.  Proposals by Ofgem concerning electricity connections 
were still awaited.  A draft Street Lighting policy based on national policy, but 
incorporating local issues where possible, was in an early stage of 
consideration. 

• It was suggested that in addition to monitoring performance indicators the 
Committee should also focus on results monitoring. 

RESOLVED: That subject to the comments detailed above the report on the 
implementation and improvement plans be noted 

13. MONITORING OF 2002/2003 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS – FULL YEAR 
APRIL 2002 TO MARCH 2003 

Members were updated on progress made by the Environment Directorate for the full 
year April 2002 to March 2003 towards achieving all of the performance 
indicators/targets which appeared in the Council’s Performance Plan. 

The report of exceptions to the targeted performance was attached to the report at 
appendix 1.  

During the course of scrutinising the indicators/targets the Committee noted the 
following principal points: 

• BV87 (and BV82a) On questioning whether this figure included Landfill Tax 
the Head of Environmental Health and Trading Standards reported that this 
was a difficult figure to compute due to other factors e.g. composting. 
However, the landfill tax was included in the Waste Contract PFI figures and 
would therefore be included in this indicator.  The Director agreed that a way 
needed to be found to express the cost of waste collection to the public in a 
meaningful way e.g. cost per black bag. 

• Local targets regarding Food and Health and Safety inspections – The Head 
of Environmental Health and Trading Standards reported that due to pressure 
from the Food Standards Agency resources had been focused on Food 
Standards Inspections, which, while inspections had been targeted, had 
resulted in a large volume of inspection work.  This had had a detrimental 

5



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 13TH JUNE, 2003
 

EnvSCminutes13.6.030.doc 

effect on Health and Safety inspections which also required an increased 
level of resourcing.  He commented that the Service offered advice and 
training on these issues via the Herefordshire Business Partnership. 

• BV109a – The Committee noted that due to the small number of applications, 
the target for determination of major industrial planning applications could be 
greatly affected by one application.  Further improvements were expected 
following Cabinet’s endorsement of the draft programme of improvement work 
to be funded by the Planning Delivery Grant. 

• Responding to a comment on the percentage of planning applications invalid 
on receipt, the Chief Planning Services Officer reported that while covering a 
complicated subject, the information leaflet for applicants had been improved 
and she hoped that applicants would find the information clearer. 

• BV 178 – The Head of Engineering and Transportation reported that the 
results were based on a sample survey which was considered to be 
representative of the 2,000 miles of Public Rights of Way in the County. 

• BV 186a & BV 196b – the Assistant Treasurer reported that the out-turn 
expenditure figures were currently being compiled and, while not easy to 
calculate, the required figures would be known soon. 

RESOLVED: That the exceptions monitoring report in relation to the 2002/2003 
local and national performance indicators be noted subject to the 
members comments summarised above. 

14. GEM PERFORMANCE 

The Committee considered issues concerning GEM (Good Environmental 
Management) Performance. 

The Environmental Sustainability Officer presented a report on the background and 
current position in relation to GEM.  The system focused on the direct effects the 
Council had on the environment which were within its own immediate control.  She 
highlighted the Council’s Environmental Policy which covered all the authority’s 
services, attached at appendix C to the report.  The Council had done well in the 
fourth West Midland Environmental Index – achieving a score 20% higher than the 
average for Councils.  External auditors had undertaken a half-year surveillance visit 
to audit the Council’s continued adherence to the standards required by ISO 14001 
arising from which six Corrective Action Requests (CARs) and observations had 
been made.  She also referred to progress on previous Scrutiny Committee 
recommendations.  The Report referred to a summary of progress on GEM 
objectives and targets during 2002/3 (appendix A) and the performance on GEM 
targets due in 2002/3 (Appendix B).   

The Committee discussed the report and in response to a question on baseline 
statistics for energy usage by the Council, the Environmental Sustainability Officer 
reported that this was a Best Value Indicator and since the employment of an Energy 
Monitoring Technician the baseline data was more robust. 

In response to questions regarding contaminated land management (Appendix A 
section 4), the Committee noted that a considerable amount of maintenance and 
control of the Stretton Sugwas site was needed.  Officers were exploring the possible 
use of the methane gas, which was currently flared off. 

6



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 13TH JUNE, 2003
 

EnvSCminutes13.6.030.doc 

RESOLVED: That the report on GEM Performance be noted. 

15. PARKING ENFORCEMENT IN HEREFORDSHIRE 

(The Chairman agreed to take this item as agenda item 14 - prior to the item on GEM 
Performance). 

The Committee received a report on the first year of operation of the Decriminalised 
Parking Service. 

The Head of Engineering and Transportation reported that income for the year 
2002/03 was below levels anticipated in the original business plan but had been 
balanced by expenditure below forecast levels.  It was likely that a small surplus  - 
ring-fenced for transportation – may continue in 2003/4.  However, with penalty 
charges being nationally prescribed, there was an increased risk of a deficit in future 
years, the possible management of which was described in the report. 

The Director commented that since the Council had taken over the service there 
seemed to have been a reduced amount of disruption to traffic flow and less double 
parking.  This improvement in traffic flow had also been noted in Ledbury. 

Concern was expressed regarding possible public reaction to a deficit position for the 
service. 

The Head of Engineering and Transportation reported upon the high levels of 
concern expressed in the Ross-on-Wye area which had been the subject of local 
meetings.  Concern was now being raised in the Bromyard area which had possibly 
been aggravated by the recent loss of a local car park.  He would be talking to local 
ward members about the situation in the near future. 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 

16. ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 
2003/2004 

The Committee considered its work programme. 

The Director of Environment commented that while the work programme, detailed in 
the report, identified items requiring periodic monitoring and attention a number of 
substantial items had also been included.  As discussed earlier in the meeting the 
subject of Waste Management would initially be covered by member briefings for all 
Councillors.  Reports on other subjects would be presented as they became 
available.  Depending on the subject these could be scrutinised by various methods 
as suggested earlier in the meeting (minute no 6 – Scrutiny Role and Techniques). 

It was suggested that in addition to monitoring performance indicators the Committee 
should also focus on results monitoring.  GEM issues were suggested as an item for 
possible further examination. 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and the Chairman and Vice-Chairman be 
authorised to review the work programme with the Director of 
Environment. 

 

The meeting ended at 1.28 p.m. CHAIRMAN 

7



8



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26 SEPTEMBER, 2003 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from  (John Clarke) on 01432 260448 
 
 

ENVIRONMENTATTENDANCE8030.doc 

 HUMAN RESOURCES 

Report By: Personnel Manager, Well-being 
NOT FOR DISCLOSURE CONFIDENTIAL 

Wards Affected 

 None 

Purpose 

1. To report on the sickness absence and other matters for the Environment Directorate 

Considerations 

2. Attached at appendix 1 is the human resources report taken from the Computerised 
Human Resources Information System (CHRIS). 

3. The report covers the financial year 16th August 2002 – 15th August 2003. The figures 
include all temporary and fixed term contract employees but do not include casuals.  
This means the numerator and denominator are different to BV PI 12 but hardly 
measurable 

5. The report shows the number of people working in each division of the Directorate 
and the full time equivalent (FTE).  The next column shows the FTE days lost for 
each division followed by the average days lost per FTE. 

6. The days lost compares well with last year and is slightly less than the current overall 
figure for the Council of 7.62 FTE days lost per employee 

7. Below the chart are other statistics that show the breakdown and staff turnover etc. 

8. The second page shows the reason for sickness absence and it can be seen that 
people are using stress as a reason for absence.  The Occupational Health and 
Safety Committee are meeting on the 15th September to discuss ways of monitoring 
assessing and auditing stress throughout the Council. 

9. Also shown on page 2 of the appendix is a breakdown of accidents by division over 
the last year.  Attacks by animals affect all sections of the Directorate and perhaps 
this should be highlighted at future team meetings.  Overall the Council is showing a 
remarkable low number of accidents where people take more than 3 days off work.  
Managers, supervisors and other employees should be congratulated that they are 
keeping themselves and others safe. 

9. The directorate had no ill health retirements during the year.  

Recommendation 

That the report is noted. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5

9



10



Herefordshire Council
Human Resources

Division Section Perm. 
Employees

FTE 
Employees

Sickness 
FTE Days 

Lost

Ave days 
sickness lost 

per FTE

EH & TS 114 106.91 884.22 8.27

Eng. & Transp. 149 132.10 777.25 5.88
Planning 121 108.44 1031 9.51
Property 53 50.81 231 4.55
Total 437 398.26 2923.47 7.34

Jobs filled 
by people 

with 
disabilities

Annual 
turnover

% Ethnic 
minorities

Accidents/ 
incidents

Reportable 
accidents F2508 

raised

EH & TS
All sections incl. 
Director 1.76% 3.50% 0.00% 10

Eng. & Transp. All sections 2.68% 10.74% 2.00% 5 2
Planning All sections 0.00% 12.40% 0.80% 3
Property All sections 1.88% 9.43% 0.00% 3
Total 1.60% 9.15% 0.92% 21 2

All sections

ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

All sections including Director

All sections
All sections

TIME LOST THROUGH SICKNESS 

EH & TS
30%

Eng. & Transp.
27%

Planning
35%

Property
8%

EH & TS
Eng. & Transp.
Planning
Property

env803fteetcsheet10.XLS 1 03/09/03

11



12



Herefordshire Council
Human Resources

Absence Reason

EH & TS 
FTE days 

lost

ENG. & 
TRANSP. 
FTE Days 

lost

PLANNING 
FTE Days 

lost

PROPERTY 
FTE Days 

lost

DIR. 
TOTALS

Heart & cardiovascular 0 46 0 0 46
Back 53 19 15.5 3 90.5
Other MSDs 111 222.5 24.5 7.5 365.5
Genito urinary 0 22 15 0 37
Gynaecological 0 0.5 0 2 2.5
Stress related 30 21 388 4 443
Viral infections 79.22 128.75 196.5 57.5 461.97
Operations & recovery 76 11 54 16 157
Stomach & digestive 60 109 112 30.5 311.5
Chest & respiratory 168.5 97 107 58 430.5
Head & Migraine 28.5 15.5 34 3.5 81.5
Pregnancy related 9 0 1 0 10
Other including accidents 269 85 83.5 49 486.5

Total 884.22 777.25 1031 231 2923.47

ACCIDENT CAUSE EH & TS ENG. & 
TRANSP. PLANNING PROPERTY DIR. 

TOTALS
Hit By A Moving Object 1 0 0 0 1
Hit By A Moving Vehicle 1 2 0 0 3
Injured By An Animal 2 1 1 1 5
Injured While MHO 1 0 0 0 1
Physically Assault 3 2 0 0 5
Slipped 0 0 2 0 2
Other causes 2 0 0 1 3
Struck something fixed 0 0 0 1 1

Total 10 5 3 3 21

ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE

REASON FOR ABSENCE

0
100
200
300
400
500
600

Hea
rt &

 ca
rdi

ov
as

cu
lar

Bac
k

Othe
r M

SDs

Gen
ito

 ur
ina

ry

Gyn
ae

co
log

ica
l

Stre
ss

 re
lat

ed

Vira
l in

fec
tio

ns

Ope
rat

ion
s &

 re
co

ve
ry

Stom
ac

h &
 di

ge
sti

ve

Che
st 

& re
sp

ira
tor

y

Hea
d &

 M
igr

ain
e

Preg
na

nc
y r

ela
ted

Othe
r in

clu
din

g a
cc

ide
nts

env803fteetcsheet20.XLS 2 03/09/03

13



14



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26TH SEPTEMBER 2003 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Keetch, Assistant County Treasurer, on 
01432 260227 

CapitalBudgetmonitoringf0.doc  

 CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING 

Report By: Director of the Environment 
 

Purpose 

1. To advise Members on the progress of the 2003/04 Capital Programme for 
Environment Areas within the overall context of the Herefordshire Council Capital 
Programme.  

Financial Implications 

2. Capital Budgets for the Environment Programme Areas for 2003/04 are shown on an 
individual basis, with funding arrangements indicated in overall terms.  

Considerations 

3. The report has been largely based on the first round of capital monitoring, which 
involved an examination of all schemes at the end of July 2003.  Care is being taken 
to ensure the forecast spend accurately reflects the expected spend in 2003/04. The 
overall spending position is being kept under careful review. An Environment General 
Capital Working Group has been set up to ensure any slippages are managed and 
no conditional funding is lost. 

4.  The actual spending against each scheme is shown as up to 2nd September 2003.   

5. The total Capital Programme for 2003/04 shown in Appendix 1 totals £10,500,941.  

6. The total shown in the previous report to the Committee for “other schemes” has now 
been allocated out to individual schemes.  Changes to the funding have also been 
made including an increased call on the Capital Receipts reserve of £195,000 and an 
adjustment of £250,000 regarding the funding for the Low Floor Bus pilot as this 
funding  was used to finance the 2002/03 Programme.  This means that the overall 
funding available falls £55,000 to £10,500,941. 

7. The changes to the scheme totals previously reported are as follows: 

 Previously  
reported 

 £ 

Present 
forecast  

£ 

Change 
 

£ 

Bus priority schemes 30,000 45,000 +15,000 

Rotherwas Integrated Access 15,000 50,000 +35,000 

Multi Modal Study - 20,000 +20,000 

Transport Strategy - 75,000 +75,000 

Rotherwas Access Road 200,000     250,000 +50,000 

Rural Low Floor Bus Project 1,277,000 1,267,000 -10,000 

Other Schemes total allocated 
out to individual schemes since 
the last meeting  

240,000 - -240,000 

Net total of the adjustments    -55,000 

AGENDA ITEM 6

15



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26TH SEPTEMBER 2003 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Keetch, Assistant County Treasurer, on 
01432 260227 

CapitalBudgetmonitoringf0.doc  

 
8. The total spent to date is £2,726,033 or 26% as at 2nd September 2003.  Almost all 

budgeted spend on roads and bridges is committed which would take the total spent 
or committed  to date up to £6,103,819 or 59%. In addition amounts are in the 
process of being committed in respect of the remaining schemes. 

9. The sum of £53,279 remains in the Capital Receipts Reserve for now for allocation to 
individual schemes.  This total reflects the expected increased use of reserves in 
2003/04 (£195,000) and the fact that the Red Meadow Capital Receipt is not now 
expected in 2003/04 (£450,000). 

10. Possible future budget changes relate to the Ross Flood Alleviation scheme where 
funding is subject to final approval and the actual spend on bridge schemes may 
exceed its original budget.  This will be reviewed again in the next round of capital 
monitoring during October. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the report be noted.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 
 

16



Environment General Appendix 1
Original 

budget for 
2003/04

Revised 
Forecast for 

2003/04

Spend as per 
Cedar

Unposted 
Recharges & 

Commitments

Total Spend or 
Committed to 

date

% of 
Budget 
Spent

Scheme 2003/04 at 1/07/03 at 2/09/03 at 1/07/03 2003/04 2003/04
 £  £  £  £  £  % 

Non LTP:

Safer Route to School

Minor Highways Schemes (33,594) (33,594)

Bye Street 25,475 25,475 

Sec 106 Agree - Friar St 37,630 37,630 0%
LPSA improving road safety 7,036 7,036 0%
LPSA improving road safety 96,054 96,054 0%
Countywide Safety Strategy:

LTP - Review/Upgrade Speed limit signing 40,000 40,000 11,361 11,361 28%

LTP - Low cost Safety Schemes 150,000 150,000 23,883 23,883 16%

LTP - Traffic Calming 75,000 75,000 0%

LTP - Minor Safety Improvements 50,000 50,000 14,016 14,016 28%

LTP - Safety Cameras 10,000 10,000 9,200 9,200 92%

LTP - Village Speed limit reductions 10,000 10,000 0%

LTP - 20 mph Zones at Schools 100,000 100,000 (5,651) (5,651) -6%

LTP - Vehicle activated Signs 10,000 10,000 0%

Hereford Integrated Transport Strategy:

LTP - Travel Awareness Campaign 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 100%

LTP - Bus Priority Schemes 30,000 45,000 0%
LTP - PTI - Bus 40,000 40,000 0%
LTP - PTI - Rail
LTP - PTI 2000 10,000 10,000 0%

LTP - Passenger Waiting Facilities 25,000 25,000 13,474 13,474 54%

LTP - Park and Ride 19,000 19,000 0%
LTP - Cycle Network Development 70,000 70,000 5,463 5,463 8%
LTP - Safer Routes to Schools 150,000 150,000 5,661 5,661 4%
LTP - Safer Routes to Schools Training Support 10,000 10,000 0%
LTP - Pedestrian Crossing Improvements 5,000 5,000 0%
LTP - Pedestrian Route & Disabled Access Imps 25,000 25,000 5,254 5,254 21%

LTP - Rotherwas Integrated Access 15,000 50,000 4,164 4,164 8%

LTP - Monitoring 5,000 5,000 617 617 12%

LTP - Multi Modal Study 20,000 499 499 2%

LTP - WyeS Moves 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 100%

Rural Areas & Market Towns Int Trans Strategy:

Transport Strategy 75,000 0%

LTP - Travel Awareness Campaign 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 100%

LTP - PTI - Rail 70,000 70,000 0%

LTP - Public Transport Information Access Points 5,000 5,000 0%

LTP - Passenger Waiting Facilities 40,000 40,000 2,030 2,030 5%
LTP - Network of Cycle Routes and Cycle Parking 88,000 88,000 1,498 1,498 2%
LTP - Pedestrian and Disabled Access Improvements 20,000 20,000 4,538 4,538 23%
LTP - Safer Routes to Schools 125,000 125,000 129,548 129,548 104%
LTP - Safer Routes to Schools Training Support 15,000 15,000 0%
LTP - Rural Footway Improvements 50,000 50,000 2,871 2,871 6%

LTP - Leominster Bus Station Improvements 180,000 180,000 1,532 1,532 1%

LTP - Quiet Lanes
LTP - Monitoring 10,000 10,000 0%

Major Minor Schemes:
LTP - Rotherwas Access Road 200,000 250,000 59,590 59,590 24%
LTP - Roman Road 800,000 800,000 47,182 47,182 6%

LTP - Rural Low floor Bus Project 1,277,000 1,267,000 9,052 9,052 1%

Bye St Toilets Ledbury (27,732) (27,732)

LTP - Staff costs to be allocated over LTP schemes 301,000 301,000 161,113 161,113 54%
17



Environment General Appendix 1
Original 

budget for 
2003/04

Revised 
Forecast for 

2003/04

Spend as per 
Cedar

Unposted 
Recharges & 

Commitments

Total Spend or 
Committed to 

date

% of 
Budget 
Spent

Scheme 2003/04 at 1/07/03 at 2/09/03 at 1/07/03 2003/04 2003/04
 £  £  £  £  £  % 

Capitalised Maintenance:

Capitalised Maintenance of Principal Roads 910,000 910,000 910,000 910,000 100%

Capitalised Maintenance of Non-Principal Roads 3,090,000 3,090,000 1,379,580 1,710,420 3,090,000 100%

Footways - Footways 425,000 425,000 16,774 16,774 4%

Capitalised Ass'ment & Strength of Bridges 1,591,000 1,591,000 833,572 757,428 1,591,000 100%

Other schemes 240,000 

Gross Expenditure 10,451,720 10,396,720 2,725,971      3,377,848            6,103,819        59%

Year End Creditors b/fwd 104,221 104,221 104,221           

Year End Creditors c/fwd

Expenditure to be Financed 10,555,941 10,500,941 2,725,971      3,377,848 6,208,040        59%

Financed By: £ £ n/a n/a n/a n/a
BCA (9,821,000) (9,821,000)

Objective 2 Rotherwas Intergrated Access (35,000) (35,000)

Objective 2 Rural Transport Strategy (75,000) (75,000)

Objective 2 Rotherwas Access Road (50,000) (50,000)

LPSA (103,090) (103,090)

Advantage West Midlands Multi Modal Study (20,000) (20,000)

Private Developers Bus Priority Scheme (15,000) (15,000)

Capital Receipts Reserve (118,952) (303,952)

Corporate Capital Receipts Reserve (op creditors) (40,269) (40,269)

Section 106 Friar St (37,630) (37,630)

Legion Way cont from other organisations

Historic building grants

Safety cameras

Countryside Agency-Rural Low Floor Bus Pilot (240,000)

(10,555,941) (10,500,941)

Capital Receipts Reserve Position: £ £ n/a n/a n/a n/a
B/Fwd as at 1 April 357,231 357,231 
Capital Receipts in year - expected 450,000 
Transfer from CCRR 40,269 40,269 
Capital Receipts applied (159,221) (344,221)
C/Fwd as at 31 March 688,279 53,279 

Notes 

1.  Original Budget column shows scheme budgets as reported to the Scrutiny Committee on 13th June 2003.

2.  Revised Forecast column shows the latest spending forecasts for each scheme.

3. Cedar is the Council's main financial system.

18



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26TH SEPTEMBER 2003 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Keetch 
on extension 0227 

RevenueBudgetMonitoring0.doc  

 ENVIRONMENT REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 

Report By: DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT  
 

Purpose 

1. To advise members of Budget Monitoring the position for the Environment 
Programme Area budgets for the period to 31st July 2003.  The report discusses 
variations against budget at this stage in the year.  

Financial Implications 

2. It is expected that all budget variances will  be contained within the overall 2003/04 
revenue budget 2002/03 for Environment.    Some pressure areas have been 
identified below but where necessary, management action will be taken to contain 
these pressures.  

Considerations 

3. The report on Budget Monitoring is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ 
consideration.  

4. The overall Environment Budget for 2003/04 is £22,098,000 which is the budget 
notified to the last meeting of the Committee plus the carry forward of £220,000 from 
2002/3. 

5. The carry forward of £220,000 from 2002/03 has been allocated as follows: -  

 £000  

Decriminalised parking 10 Any surplus on this service must be used 
for transport related purposes. 

Licensing 10  

Road maintenance 200  

Total 220  

 

A large proportion of this underspending is allocated to road maintenance to reflect 
the priority given to this service and the additional allocations given for this purpose 
in 2003/04.  

Environment General 

6. The latest information suggests spending will be  in line with the budget at present.  
There are three main pressure areas including the Travellers services budget, which 
was overspent in 2002/03.  The Waste Collection contract is expected to be 
overspent because of the recent contract indexing although this is being offset  by 
improved Trade Waste Income.  Car parking excluding decriminalised parking is 
expected to overspend due to the ongoing cost of non-domestic rates.   Management 

AGENDA ITEM 7

19



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26TH SEPTEMBER 2003 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from David Keetch 
on extension 0227 

RevenueBudgetMonitoring0.doc  

action including possibly virements from other services will be necessary to contain 
these pressures.  

 

Environment Regulatory  

7. The spending on these services looks very much in line with the budget at present.  It 
is hoped at present that budget pressures in respect of landfill and contaminated land 
and licensing can be contained within the overall budget. 

Environment Planning 

8. The only variation identified to date is additional development fee income of around 
£50,000.  It is too early to say if this increased income will be maintained throughout 
the year.  The report assures the Planning Development Grant of £320,000 will be 
spent during the year. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Revenue Budget Monitoring Report for 2003/04 be noted 
subject to any comments which members may wish to make. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None identified. 

20



Pe
rio

d 
01

-0
4 

20
03

/4

Pa
ge

 N
o.

20
03

/2
00

4 
B

ud
ge

t
A

ct
ua

ls
 to

 
Pe

rio
d 

B
ud

ge
t t

o 
Pe

rio
d 

Va
ria

nc
e 

fo
r 

Pe
rio

d
Es

tim
. O

ut
 

tu
rn

£
£

£
£

1
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t R
eg

ul
at

or
y

2,
27

5,
87

0
62

1,
28

3
75

5,
29

0
-1

34
,0

08
2,

27
5,

00
0

2-
4

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t G

en
er

al
16

,6
24

,2
30

2,
97

5,
83

4
5,

45
7,

54
0

-2
,4

81
,7

07
16

,6
24

,0
00

5
Pl

an
ni

ng
2,

15
0,

70
0

49
7,

26
5

68
6,

56
7

-1
89

,3
01

2,
11

2,
00

0

C
en

tr
al

 S
up

po
rt

 C
ha

rg
es

1,
04

7,
20

0
1,

04
7,

20
0

22
,0

98
,0

00
4,

09
4,

38
2

6,
89

9,
39

7
-2

,8
05

,0
16

22
,0

58
,2

00

A
pp

en
di

x 
1

21



22



A
re

as
 o

f A
ct

iv
ity

20
03

/0
4 

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
ls

 to
 

Pe
rio

d 
4

B
ud

ge
t t

o 
Pe

rio
d 

4
Va

ria
nc

e 
to

 
Pe

rio
d 

4
Es

tim
at

ed
 

O
ut

-tu
rn

£
£

£
£

£
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t R
eg

ul
at

or
y:

A
ir 

P
ol

lu
tio

n
8,

31
0

-2
5,

43
0

2,
77

0
-2

8,
20

0
7,

00
0

La
nd

fil
l a

nd
 C

on
ta

m
in

at
ed

 L
an

d
25

1,
27

0
61

,9
54

83
,7

57
-2

1,
80

3
28

5,
00

0

W
at

er
 P

ol
lu

tio
n

52
,7

50
11

,7
58

17
,5

83
-5

,8
25

50
,0

00

P
es

t C
on

tro
l

55
,2

70
-2

,8
57

18
,4

23
-2

1,
28

1
49

,0
00

D
og

 C
on

tro
l

82
,2

10
23

,9
04

27
,4

03
-3

,5
00

80
,0

00

A
ni

m
al

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
fa

re
14

7,
03

0
63

,6
80

49
,0

10
14

,6
70

14
5,

00
0

Li
ce

ns
in

g
10

,5
60

-3
,2

06
18

7
-3

,3
93

19
,0

00

Tr
ad

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
50

3,
35

0
13

6,
33

3
16

7,
78

3
-3

1,
45

0
48

5,
00

0

S
M

S
S

 H
ea

d 
of

 E
nv

. H
ea

lth
/T

ra
di

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

29
4,

22
0

74
,7

38
98

,0
73

-2
3,

33
6

29
0,

00
0

S
M

S
S

 C
om

m
er

ci
al

 te
am

43
9,

81
0

13
8,

27
0

14
6,

60
3

-8
,3

34
42

5,
00

0

S
M

S
S

 P
ol

lu
tio

n 
C

on
tro

l
43

1,
09

0
14

2,
13

9
14

3,
69

7
-1

,5
58

44
0,

00
0

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t R

eg
ul

at
or

y:
2,

27
5,

87
0

62
1,

28
3

75
5,

29
0

-1
34

,0
08

2,
27

5,
00

0

P
ag

e 
1

23



A
re

as
 o

f A
ct

iv
ity

20
03

/0
4 

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
ls

 to
 

Pe
rio

d 
4

B
ud

ge
t t

o 
Pe

rio
d 

4
Va

ria
nc

e 
to

 
Pe

rio
d 

4
Es

tim
at

ed
 

O
ut

-tu
rn

£
£

£
£

£

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t G

en
er

al

H
ig

hw
ay

s:

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
- P

ro
f. 

&
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
S

ta
ff

2,
36

7,
59

0
79

5,
61

5
78

9,
19

7
6,

41
8

2,
36

0,
00

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

10
4,

51
0

0
0

0
10

5,
00

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
- R

oa
ds

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

3,
63

6,
31

0
68

3,
24

1
1,

14
5,

43
7

-4
62

,1
95

3,
63

6,
00

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
- N

R
S

W
A

-9
7,

83
0

-4
5,

10
3

-3
2,

61
0

-1
2,

49
3

-1
10

,0
00

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
- W

in
te

r M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

53
4,

82
0

4,
11

4
17

8,
27

3
-1

74
,1

60
52

0,
00

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
- D

ra
in

ag
e/

Fl
oo

d 
A

lle
vi

at
io

n
13

2,
13

0
26

,8
62

44
,0

43
-1

7,
18

2
13

0,
00

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
- S

tre
et

 L
ig

ht
in

g
73

9,
87

0
53

,0
10

24
6,

62
3

-1
93

,6
14

74
0,

00
0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
- B

rid
ge

w
or

ks
63

,7
00

-4
6,

82
9

21
,2

33
-6

8,
06

3
75

,0
00

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
- P

ub
lic

 R
ig

ht
s 

of
 W

ay
21

2,
70

0
50

,5
21

70
,9

00
-2

0,
37

9
21

5,
00

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
- S

ho
pm

ob
ili

ty
0

11
,5

61
0

11
,5

61
39

,0
00

H
ig

hw
ay

s-
 C

ar
 P

ar
ki

ng
 

-1
,0

82
,4

10
-2

93
,4

27
-3

60
,8

03
67

,3
76

-1
,0

40
,0

00

H
ig

hw
ay

s-
 D

eC
rim

. o
f P

ar
ki

ng
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t

12
,9

50
-6

0,
74

7
98

3
-6

1,
73

0
-5

0,
00

0

H
ig

hw
ay

s-
Li

ce
ns

in
g

-5
,3

40
-1

1,
50

8
-1

,7
80

-9
,7

28
-1

5,
00

0

P
ag

e 
2

24



A
re

as
 o

f A
ct

iv
ity

20
03

/0
4 

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
ls

 to
 

Pe
rio

d 
4

B
ud

ge
t t

o 
Pe

rio
d 

4
Va

ria
nc

e 
to

 
Pe

rio
d 

4
Es

tim
at

ed
 

O
ut

-tu
rn

£
£

£
£

£
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n:

Tr
an

sp
or

t -
 P

ro
f. 

&
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
S

ta
ff

70
3,

27
0

24
7,

08
7

23
4,

42
3

12
,6

63
68

0,
00

0

Tr
an

sp
or

t -
 P

ub
lic

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
(in

cl
. R

ur
al

)
77

3,
19

0
83

,4
12

33
7,

40
7

-2
53

,9
95

77
3,

00
0

Tr
an

sp
or

t -
 D

es
ig

n/
P

la
nn

in
g 

st
af

f
53

,0
70

-8
,3

80
17

,6
90

-2
6,

07
0

50
,0

00

Tr
an

sp
or

t -
 T

ra
ffi

c 
m

an
ag

em
en

t
10

2,
09

0
32

,6
73

34
,0

30
-1

,3
57

12
0,

00
0

Tr
an

sp
or

t -
 R

oa
d 

S
af

et
y

5,
26

0
7,

09
2

1,
75

3
5,

33
8

5,
00

0

Tr
an

sp
or

t -
 S

ch
oo

l C
ro

ss
in

g 
P

at
ro

ls
43

,5
90

10
,2

27
14

,5
30

-4
,3

03
36

,0
00

Tr
an

sp
or

t -
 B

us
 S

ta
tio

ns
-1

3,
10

0
-6

,3
87

-4
,3

67
-2

,0
20

-1
7,

00
0

Tr
an

sp
or

t -
 C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 T
ra

ve
l

29
5,

66
0

-2
,0

76
98

,5
53

-1
00

,6
30

30
5,

00
0

Tr
an

sp
or

t -
 S

ea
rc

he
s

-1
,5

30
3,

27
7

-5
10

3,
78

7
-2

,0
00

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
- S

.3
8 

Fe
es

-4
0,

54
0

-5
8,

31
8

-1
3,

51
3

-4
4,

80
4

-3
6,

00
0

P
ag

e 
3

25



W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t/O
th

er
:

W
as

te
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
(D

om
es

tic
)

2,
69

9,
35

0
70

4,
56

2
89

9,
78

3
-1

95
,2

22
2,

83
0,

00
0

W
as

te
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n 
(T

ra
de

)
-3

0,
11

0
-2

16
,4

47
-1

0,
03

7
-2

06
,4

10
-1

30
,0

00

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
22

9,
23

0
69

,9
57

76
,4

10
-6

,4
53

24
5,

00
0

W
as

te
 D

is
po

sa
l

3,
82

5,
10

0
82

3,
22

6
1,

27
5,

03
3

-4
51

,8
07

3,
82

5,
00

0

R
ec

yc
lin

g
16

4,
30

0
64

,5
55

54
,7

67
9,

78
9

16
4,

00
0

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
C

le
an

si
ng

76
1,

96
0

3,
64

3
25

3,
98

7
-2

50
,3

44
76

5,
00

0

A
dm

in
. S

up
po

rt 
Te

am
23

,0
10

6,
14

0
7,

67
0

-1
,5

30
20

,0
00

G
yp

sy
 S

ite
s

-1
,5

30
19

,3
83

-5
10

19
,8

93
45

,0
00

C
em

et
er

ie
s

11
4,

53
0

16
,3

74
38

,1
77

-2
1,

80
3

50
,0

00

C
re

m
at

or
iu

m
-1

66
,8

60
-4

6,
75

5
-5

5,
62

0
8,

86
5

-1
85

,0
00

P
ub

lic
 C

on
ve

ni
en

ce
s

28
9,

16
0

55
,2

81
96

,3
87

-4
1,

10
5

30
0,

00
0

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
17

6,
13

0
0

0
0

17
6,

00
0

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t G

en
er

al
:

16
,6

24
,2

30
2,

97
5,

83
4

5,
45

7,
54

0
-2

,4
81

,7
07

16
,6

24
,0

00

P
ag

e 
4

26



Pl
an

ni
ng

 B
ud

ge
t M

on
ito

rin
g 

R
ep

or
t

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 P
er

io
ds

 1
-4

 2
00

3/
04

A
re

as
 o

f A
ct

iv
ity

20
03

/0
4 

B
ud

ge
t

A
ct

ua
ls

 to
 

Pe
rio

d 
4

B
ud

ge
t t

o 
Pe

rio
d 

4
Va

ria
nc

e 
to

 
Pe

rio
d 

4
Es

tim
at

ed
 

O
ut

-tu
rn

£
£

£
£

£
Pl

an
ni

ng

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

on
tr

ol
:

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

on
tro

l F
ee

s
-5

74
,8

10
-1

93
,4

81
-1

91
,6

03
-1

,8
78

-5
75

,0
00

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

on
tro

l S
ta

ff
57

6,
74

2
17

7,
15

6
19

2,
24

7
-1

5,
09

2
57

7,
00

0

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

:
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

on
tro

l F
ee

s
-8

30
,1

87
-3

39
,9

90
-2

76
,7

29
-6

3,
26

1
-8

70
,0

00
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

on
tro

l S
ta

ff
1,

38
4,

96
6

46
1,

17
8

46
1,

65
5

-4
78

1,
38

5,
00

0

Fo
rw

ar
d 

P
la

nn
in

g
41

4,
61

8
13

1,
71

5
13

8,
20

6
-6

,4
91

41
5,

00
0

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
G

ra
nt

s
77

,7
70

-4
2,

95
9

25
,9

23
-6

8,
88

3
78

,0
00

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
54

6,
14

8
18

1,
34

8
18

2,
04

9
-7

01
54

6,
00

0

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tra

tio
n

28
2,

51
4

81
,9

98
94

,1
72

-1
2,

17
4

28
3,

00
0

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
27

2,
93

9
40

,3
01

60
,6

46
-2

0,
34

5
27

3,
00

0

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t P

la
nn

in
g:

2,
15

0,
70

0
49

7,
26

5
68

6,
56

7
-1

89
,3

01
2,

11
2,

00
0

To
ta

ls
 - 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t:

21
,0

50
,8

00
4,

09
4,

38
2

6,
89

9,
39

7
-2

,8
05

,0
16

21
,0

11
,0

00

P
ag

e 
5

27



28



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26 SEPTEMBER 2003 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bob Barker, Best Value Officer 
 on 01432 260985 

 
 

ImprovmentPlanCommitteereport26Sept20030.doc  

 BEST VALUE REVIEWS – IMPLEMENTATION OF 
IMPROVEMENT PLANS 

Report By: Best Value Officer 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1 To report the exceptions of the programmed progress on the actions in the 
improvement plans resulting from the reviews of Public Rights of Way, Highway 
Maintenance and Public Conveniences. 

Financial Implications 

2 There has been no variation to the financial implications identified in the individual 
Improvement Plans.  

Background 

3 In response to comments from Members and Officers, the reporting arrangements 
have been developed by consolidating the reports and only reporting on exceptions 
to the programmed actions. That is, where actions have been completed earlier than 
programmed or where the timetable has not been met. 

4 The exceptions are listed in Appendix 1 of this report and cover the following 
improvement plans: 

• Development Control 

• Public Conveniences 

• Public Rights of Way 

• Highway Maintenance 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT members note and comment on, where appropriate, the 
implementation of the improvement plans. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

AGENDA ITEM 8

29



30



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

P
ag

e 
1 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

  
B

y 
W

he
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 
In

di
ca

to
r f

or
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

H
ig

h 
D

ev
el

op
 

th
e 

m
os

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
et

ho
d 

of
 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

 

A
ss

es
s 

va
rio

us
 m

et
ho

ds
 

of
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
ea

ch
 o

f t
he

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
C

on
tro

l f
un

ct
io

ns
. A

ss
es

s 
ag

ai
ns

t b
en

ch
m

ar
k 

au
th

or
iti

es
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 e

xt
er

na
lis

ed
 a

ll 
or

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

C
on

tro
l f

un
ct

io
n.

 

Id
en

tif
y 

de
ta

ile
d 

co
st

 o
f 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

se
rv

ic
es

 

  

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

er
vi

ce
/ 

D
C

 
M

an
ag

er
 

D
ec

 2
00

2 

Ju
ne

 2
00

3 

 

Ti
m

es
he

et
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

ta
ki

ng
 

pl
ac

e 
S

ep
t a

nd
 O

ct
. t

o 
en

ab
le

 a
 c

os
t o

f i
nd

iv
id

ua
l 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 to
 b

e 
ev

al
ua

te
d.

 

 

B
V

10
7 

C
os

t o
f 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
er

 
he

ad
 o

f 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

 
PU

B
LI

C
 C

O
N

VE
N

IE
N

C
ES

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
B

y 
W

he
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 
In

di
ca

to
r f

or
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

 
 

N
eg

ot
ia

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l a
sp

ec
ts

 
In

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

ne
w

 J
ar

vi
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
R

es
tru

ct
ur

e 

S
 O

at
es

 
S

ta
rt 

A
pr

il 
20

03
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
A

pr
il 

20
04

 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
ne

w
 J

ar
vi

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
R

es
tru

ct
ur

e 

 

H
ig

h 
P

rio
rit

y 
– 

20
03

/5
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

in
cl

ud
e 

su
rv

ey
 o

f e
ac

h 
P

C
 s

ite
, d

et
er

m
in

e 
le

ve
l 

of
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
nd

 c
os

t, 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l 

m
em

be
rs

, s
ub

m
it 

ca
pi

ta
l 

bi
d 

fo
r t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
sp

re
ad

 o
ve

r 5
 y

ea
rs

 

W
es

tb
ur

y 
S

t, 
Le

om
in

st
er

, w
ill

 
be

 p
ic

ke
d 

up
 in

 
20

03
/4

 

H
O

S
 

P
ro

pe
rty

 

S
ta

rti
ng

 in
 2

00
3 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 in

 
20

07
 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
ne

w
 J

ar
vi

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
R

es
tru

ct
ur

e 

P
ub

lic
 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
in

di
ca

to
r 

31



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

P
ag

e 
2 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
M

ile
st

on
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
B

y 
W

he
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

 
In

di
ca

to
r f

or
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
B

la
ck

fri
ar

s 
S

tre
et

 a
nd

 
C

at
tle

 
M

ar
ke

t 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

P
ro

vi
si

on
 to

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
in

 li
gh

t o
f o

ng
oi

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

D
ec

is
io

n 
on

 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

S
 O

at
es

 / 
C

 B
irk

s 
To

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 H
er

ef
or

d 
M

ar
ke

t s
ite

 

A
w

ai
tin

g 
de

ci
si

on
s 

on
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 E

dg
ar

 
S

t. 
G

rid
 a

re
a.

 

 

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 

co
nd

iti
on

 
of

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

N
ew

 c
le

an
si

ng
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

, t
o 

be
 

ne
go

tia
te

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

ne
w

 J
ar

vi
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 

D
ep

en
da

nt
 o

n 
fa

ci
lit

y 
ty

pe
, 

op
er

at
io

na
l 

ho
ur

s,
 o

ut
co

m
e 

fo
cu

se
d,

 e
tc

 

S
 O

at
es

 
S

ta
rt 

A
pr

il 
20

03
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
A

pr
il 

20
04

 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
ne

w
 J

ar
vi

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 

 
 

Fu
rth

er
 e

xp
lo

re
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
C

ity
/T

ow
n 

co
un

ci
ls

 a
nd

 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

pa
ni

es
. 

 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
ne

w
 J

ar
vi

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 

 PU
B

LI
C

 R
IG

H
TS

 O
F 

W
A

Y 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
C

om
m

en
t 

O
ffi

ce
r(

s)
 

B
y 

w
he

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

H
ig

h     

Im
pr

ov
ed

 
fo

cu
s 

of
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 

W
rit

e 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gy

 
fo

r f
ut

ur
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 in
cl

ud
e:

 

W
he

re
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 fo

cu
ss

ed
 

H
ow

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
A

ct
  

B
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
 w

ith
 

ta
rg

et
s 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 - 

Id
en

tif
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 p

ay
 fo

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
nc

y 
w

or
k,

 D
D

A
 c

os
t 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

, 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 

ne
tw

or
k,

 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 a
ss

et
 

re
gi

st
er

. 

 

S
O

/M
J 

/ 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
02

 
Fi

na
l 

dr
af

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 
an

d 
w

ill
 

be
 

pu
t 

be
fo

re
 

th
e 

C
ab

in
et

 
M

em
be

r 
be

fo
re

 
go

in
g 

ou
t t

o 
th

e 
ne

w
 A

cc
es

s 
Fo

ru
m

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 f

ur
th

er
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
. 

In
iti

al
 

re
se

ar
ch

 
st

ar
te

d 
on

 
E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
. 

 

B
V

17
8 

E
as

e 
of

 
us

e 
of

 
R

ig
ht

s 
of

 W
ay

 

32



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

P
ag

e 
3 

Pr
io

rit
y 

O
ut

co
m

e 
A

ct
io

n 
C

om
m

en
t 

O
ffi

ce
r(

s)
 

B
y 

w
he

n 
Pr

og
re

ss
 

In
di

ca
to

r f
or

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 

A
n 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
st

ra
te

gy
 

Th
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
A

ss
et

 
R

eg
is

te
r 

H
ow

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

P
R

O
W

 
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

Pr
io

rit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
Ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
St

ar
t 

D
at

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

ed
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

 

Pr
og

re
ss

  
In

di
ca

to
r f

or
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

H
ig

h 
C

us
to

m
er

 
Fo

cu
s 

S
et

 C
le

ar
 s

er
vi

ce
 

st
an

da
rd

s.
 P

ub
lic

is
e 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 fa

ul
t r

ep
or

tin
g,

 
se

rv
ic

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 

fu
tu

re
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n 
to

 th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

. 
M

an
ag

em
en

t o
f c

us
to

m
er

 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
. 

[B
es

t V
al

ue
 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n]
 

Ta
rg

et
 - 

P
ub

lis
h 

re
vi

se
d 

H
ig

hw
ay

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

la
n 

fo
r 

20
02

/0
3 

an
d 

w
ho

lly
 

re
vi

se
d 

H
M

P
 fo

r 
20

03
/0

4.
  P

ro
du

ce
 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

as
 a

n 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
le

af
le

t/b
oo

kl
et

 in
 

20
03

. P
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
of

 
H

ig
hw

ay
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 P
la

n 
to

 
al

l L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

Fo
ru

m
s 

in
 2

00
3.

 O
ut

co
m

e 
- 

B
et

te
r p

ub
lic

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 

se
rv

ic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
an

d 
re

po
rti

ng
 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s.

 

S
O

/M
J/

 
D

iv
is

io
na

l 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 

A
pr

-0
2

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

03
 

 S
yn

op
si

s 
of

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 in

 
ne

w
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 P
la

n 
to

 b
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
as

 a
 le

af
le

t i
n 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 h

al
f o

f 2
00

3.
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ub

lic
 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
P

I 

33



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

P
ag

e 
4 

Pr
io

rit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

A
re

a 
A

ct
io

n 
Ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
O

ffi
ce

r(
s)

 
St

ar
t 

D
at

e 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

ed
 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

da
te

 

Pr
og

re
ss

  
In

di
ca

to
r f

or
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

H
ig

h 
B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

D
ev

el
op

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 IT

 
sy

st
em

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
po

rti
ng

 v
ia

 th
e 

"w
eb

". 
-i

n 
lia

is
on

 w
ith

 IT
 s

ec
tio

n 
(c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
to

 e
-

go
ve

rn
m

en
t).

 L
in

ks
 to

 "I
nf

o 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
". 

 [B
es

t 
Va

lu
e 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

n]
 

Ta
rg

et
 - 

al
l s

er
vi

ce
 

ar
ea

s 
co

ve
re

d 
in

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 e

-
go

ve
rn

m
en

t t
ar

ge
ts

. 
O

ut
co

m
e 

- I
m

pr
ov

ed
 

cu
st

om
er

 
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

.  
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 to
 d

ef
ec

ts
 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 h

ig
he

r 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

st
an

da
rd

s.
  

B
H

/IT
/F

M
/

R
H

/D
JP

 
A

pr
-0

2
A

pr
il 

20
04

 
Th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

e-
m

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 
W

or
ks

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
s 

ha
ve

 n
ow

 b
ee

n 
cl

os
el

y 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ith

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 J
ar

vi
s 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

or
de

rin
g/

in
vo

ic
in

g 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ub

lic
 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
P

I 

M
ed

iu
m

 
B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 

Lo
ng

 te
rm

 b
rid

ge
 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 p
la

n 
in

 li
ne

 
w

ith
 L

TP
. D

ev
el

op
 

da
ta

ba
se

 o
f b

rid
ge

s 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
* 

 R
es

ul
ts

 o
f 

in
sp

ec
tio

n,
 *

  P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 w

or
ks

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
by

 
in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 *
 C

rit
er

ia
 fo

r 
pr

io
rit

is
in

g 
w

or
ks

  

Ta
rg

et
 –

 L
TP

 ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r b

rid
ge

s 
to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

20
05

.  
 

O
ut

co
m

e 
- G

re
at

er
 

re
lia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 
of

 tr
av

el
 a

nd
 fe

w
er

 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

. 

S
FB

/D
E

/ 
A

M
 

Ja
n-

02
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
04

 
20

03
/0

4 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 a
re

 
in

 h
an

d 
an

d 
to

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
  t

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

an
d 

hi
gh

w
ay

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 n

ee
ds

.  

 

 

34



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26 SEPTEMBER 2003 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bob Barker, Best Value Officer 
 on 01432 260985 

 
 

CEReviewcoverreport26September20030.doc  

 BEST VALUE REVIEW OF COMMERCIAL 
ENFORCEMENT – PROGRESS REPORT 

Report By: Best Value Officer 
 

Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To consider the progress of the Commercial Enforcement Review. 

Financial Implications 

2. There are no financial implications until the selection of the preferred option after the 
option appraisal part of the review process.   

Any expenditure relating to the review will be met from existing budgets. 

Background 

3. At the previous Scrutiny Committee in June, Councillor Mills and Councillor Ashton were 
chosen to sit on the Challenge Panel in the review team.  

4. Following a meeting with Councillor Mills it was concluded that Markets & Fairs does not 
sit with the rest of the services under this review so will therefore be considered to form 
part of the In-depth Scrutiny Review of Property instead. 

5. A situation report outlining Commercial Enforcement and the issues facing it is attached 
as appendix 1. 

6. Street Trading was to be kept within the scope of this review but it has also been 
included as part of a recent review of Economic Development which is the reason it was 
transferred from Economic Development to Markets and Fairs. It makes sense to ensure 
that the improvements relating to Street Trading made as part of the Economic 
Development have been successful rather than reviewing Street Trading again. 

7. It was felt that much of the information collected from benchmarking and consultation 
activities was out of date and so more relevant information is being sought. The service 
has also moved on following last years assessments using the European Foundation for 
Quality Management (EFQM) Excellence Model. All of the staff have been given the 
opportunity to identify the Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats to the 
service, Division and Directorate. 

8. There has been time pressure on officers during the process of externalising 
Herefordshire Commercial Services which has created a small delay. The need for more 
up to date information has meant that the Option Appraisal stage should be completed in 
time to report to Scrutiny Committee in November 2003. This would still allow the 
improvement plan to be formulated and progressed by the end of the year. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

35



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26 SEPTEMBER 2003 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Bob Barker, Best Value Officer 
 on 01432 260985 

 
 

CEReviewcoverreport26September20030.doc  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Committee note the report and comment on, where 
appropriate, the progress of the review.  

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

36



Appendix 1 
COMMERCIAL ENFORCEMENT – SITUATION REPORT 

 
BRIEF OVERVIEW OF FUNCTIONS 
Environmental Health Commercial (EHC) – Food Safety, and Health and Safety 
The service inspects food premises and certain categories of workplaces on a risk-
assessed basis to check compliance with legislation.  It investigates complaints 
regarding food, activities and premises in addition to cases of food-borne diseases 

Trading Standards (TS) 
The service encompasses both proactive enforcement and reactive responses to 
consumers and businesses in a wide area of work. This includes, Metrology (weights 
& measures), Consumer Safety, Fair Trading including prices, consumer credit and 
the descriptions of goods and services, Quality Standards, which includes the 
composition and labeling of food and animal feeding stuffs, Petroleum & Explosives 
licensing and the provision of a Consumer Advice Service. 

Licensing (LIC) 
The licensing unit issues 25 different types of licenses ranging from Public 
entertainments to Zoos.  The licenses are processed on receiving the application and 
fee, if it fulfills all the legal and council requirements the license is issued.  If there is 
a variation from policy a report is made to the regulatory committee for their 
consideration. In addition to issuing licenses the service enforces the Licensing 
legislation and breaches of the conditions. 

Taxi Licensing (TLIC) 
Carries out all statutory functions connected with hackney carriage / private hire 
licensing. This includes ensuring the propriety of all driver applicants, enforcing 
locally agreed terms and conditions, and dealing with complaints / concerns from 
members of the public. 

The fitness for purpose of the vehicles, as set out by DVLA guidelines and local 
conditions, is carried out by Herefordshire Jarvis Services. 

Street Trading 
Street Trading is incorporated in Markets and Fairs. This includes the administration 
and enforcement of Street Trading/Day Trading consent licences countywide. Fly 
posting and Health and Safety advice to event groups.   

 

HOW THE DIFFERENT STRANDS FIT TOGETHER 
EHC, TS, and LIC are service areas within the Environmental Health and Trading 
Standards Division.  TLIC is a service area within the Transport and Engineering 
Division. 

LIC is predominantly an administrative function with inspection being undertaken by 
officers of EHC or Environmental Protection however the section does carry out 
enforcement action for contraventions of the licensing legislation or license 
conditions. 

EHC and TS are principally enforcement-based Sections but with a large proportion 
of resource spent on advice, information and education.  There are a number of 
registration and licensing activities contained within these Sections. 

Until the acquisition of Street Trading, there was no enforcement element in Markets 
and Fairs. 

TLIC is an administrative and enforcement/inspection service. 

There is good and close liaison between officers in EHC, TS and LIC.  A 
representative of EHC attends the Street Trading Panel  

37



Appendix 1 
 
CHANGES SINCE THE FIRST STAGE REPORT 
 

Environmental Health Commercial (EHC) – Food Safety, and Health and Safety 
The Section continues to carry out the functions described previously.  However, 
since changes to the charges associated with certain licences, there has been an 
increase in the amount of work carried out by the Section on behalf of the Licensing 
Section. 

 

Trading Standards (TS) 
One consequence of the Council’s modernisation/eGovernment initiatives was the 
establishment of project groups to look at the delivery of key services particularly in 
Environmental Health and Trading Standards.  For most of 2003 the Trading 
Standards Manager has worked away from his section on a ‘secondment’ basis as 
part of the Access to Services (ATS) now SIPs group.  One of the Principal Trading 
Standards Officers has been managing the Section.  The other PTSO is managing 
the Licensing Section.  There has been no ‘back filling’ of posts. Increasing demands 
are being made upon the Consumer Advice Service with contacts rising year on year. 
Additional duties have been imposed by new legislation such as the Enterprise Act 
and the introduction of Enforcement Orders, the registration of feed mixers ( Mill & 
Mix on Farm) resulting in increased administrative duties for registration, and 
additional inspection & sampling responsibilities.  Changes in  ‘Age Restricted Sales ‘ 
legislation incorporating the sale of alcohol to minors have also imposed additional 
burdens on the Service. 

 

Licensing (LIC) 
The PTSO is effectively involved full time in the management of this Section 
principally as a result of new Licensing Legislation that will result in the establishment 
of a new Liquor/Entertainment regime in the UK. But still has some involvement with 
setting up the Herefordshire Consumer Support network and is still a member of the 
Community Legal Service Partnership steering group. 

A revised set of charges was introduced. 

 

Taxi Licensing (TLIC) 
None known. 

 

Street Trading  
In 2003, the Street Trading Consent/Enforcement function moved following the 
review of Economic Development. 

 

OVERVIEW OF THE ISSUES FACING COMMERCIAL ENFORCEMENT  
Increased demands placed upon the service – number of enquiries for Commercial 
Enforcement has increased (EHC, LIC, TS) 

Increased pressure from Health and Safety Commission to undertake adequate 
enforcement – guidance issued in September 2001 is now being followed up by 
auditing etc. to ensure that enforcing authorities are devoting adequate resources to 
enforcement. (EHC) 

38



Appendix 1 
Pressure from the Food Standards Agency to continually improve inspection levels – 
quarterly returns are closely monitored and the attainment of a 100% target is still 
relevant. (EHC, TS) 

Need for a Service level agreement between Licensing and EHC – traditionally 
because LIC do not have their own inspectors, staff from elsewhere have carried out 
annual inspections and inspections in connection with occasional entertainment 
applications.  Because of the need to carry out food and other related work, 
Licensing work has not been given the priority  it deserves and in addition there has 
been no transfer of monies between LIC and EHC.(EHC, LIC) 

Unfilled posts (EHC, TS, LIC) 

Recruitment of suitably qualified officers – at some stage in the next year or so we 
will be faced with technical officers becoming EHOs and leaving the organisation –
Because of the specific qualifications required the market for such officers is 
extremely limited with huge problems associated with recruitment– we have no 
trainee post in EHC. And therefore we are not developing our own replacements for 
technical staff who will leave/retire (EHC, TS) (National shortage of such staff). 

Use of a common data sets/systems; document storage and retrieval – on-going 
issue that is improving but not yet completely sorted.  Issues associated with 
databases used by LIC and their adequacy to cope with new licensing system. 

DTI requirement to provide a Service Delivery Plan as part of the National 
Performance Framework (TS). 

Registration and inspection of registered premises under feeding stuffs legislation. 

No dedicated specialist ‘in-house’ IT  Officer provision . 

Accommodation – size, location, ‘togetherness’ – already cramped and certainly not 
allowing teams to be brought together or new staff accommodated. 

 

PLANNED CHANGES FOR THE FUTURE  
Additional temporary enforcement officer – permission currently being sought for an 
officer to undertake programmed inspection of H&S premises – we failed to achieve 
our target last year. (EHC) 

Division-wide ‘restructuring’ (ALL) 

eGovernment/modernisation – exploration of flexible working – these and other 
external stimuli will need to be worked through not individually but together – they will 
have an impact upon the ways we work (EHC) 

39



40



ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 26 SEPTEMBER 2003 
 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from Graham Dunhill, Director of Environment 
 on 01432 260041 

 
 

20034PIsforSept20030.doc  

 MONITORING OF 2003/2004 PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS – APRIL 2003 TO JULY 2003 

Report By: Director of Environment 
 

Wards Affected 

 County-wide 

Purpose 

1. To update Members on progress made by the Environment Directorate for the four 
months April to July 2003 towards achieving all of the performance indicators / 
targets which appear in the Council’s Performance Plan. 

Financial Implications 

2. All expenditure in respect of performance indicators / targets is from approved 
budgets. 

Content 

3. The report of exceptions to the targeted performance is attached at Appendix 1 for 
Members’ consideration.   

4. Also included, for comparative purposes, are the out-turns for 2002/3 and the targets 
for 2002/3 and 2003/4. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the exceptions monitoring report in relation to the 2003/2004 
local and national performance indicators be noted, subject to 
any comments which Members may wish to raise.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

• None 

AGENDA ITEM 10

41



42



P
Is

20
03

4P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

A
pr

Ju
ly

E
xc

ep
tio

ns
A

pp
en

di
x1

0.
do

c 

Pa
ge

 1
 

EN
VI

R
O

N
M

EN
T 

N
at

io
na

l: 
B

es
t V

al
ue

 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

02
/2

00
3

A
ct

ua
l 

 O
ut

-tu
rn

 
20

02
/3

 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
03

/4
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
pr

-J
ul

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

V
82

a 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l t
on

na
ge

 o
f h

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 

ar
is

in
gs

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
cy

cl
ed

 
8.

25
%

 
10

.3
3%

 
13

.6
2%

 
11

.3
4%

 
 

B
V

82
b 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
to

ta
l t

on
na

ge
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 
ar

is
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

m
po

st
ed

 
5%

 
5.

12
%

 
5.

74
%

 
7.

69
%

 
 

 
Fa

ir 
ac

ce
ss

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

19
9 

Lo
ca

l S
tre

et
 a

nd
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t C
le

an
lin

es
s 

N
ew

 In
di

ca
to

r 
36

%
 

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
no

t y
et

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

 
 Lo

ca
l 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

02
/2

00
3

A
ct

ua
l 

 O
ut

-tu
rn

 
20

02
/3

 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
03

/4
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
pr

-J
ul

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

 
S

tre
et

 c
le

an
in

g 
qu

ar
te

rly
 c

le
an

lin
es

s 
in

de
x 

– 
ba

se
d 

on
 

ex
is

tin
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
78

.5
%

 
E

st
. 7

5 
80

.3
3 

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
no

t y
et

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

 
 

N
um

be
r o

f m
is

se
d 

bi
ns

 –
 a

ll 
ro

un
ds

 (n
ot

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
tra

de
) 

ba
se

d 
on

 2
 p

er
 ro

un
d 

pe
r w

ee
k 

46
 

27
.5

1 
46

 
29

.6
6 

 

 
%

 o
f d

ay
s 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
ve

ni
en

ce
s 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
cl

os
ed

 
2%

 
0.

97
%

 
0.

87
%

 
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

no
t y

et
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
 

 EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
 A

N
D

 T
R

A
N

SP
O

R
TA

TI
O

N
 

Lo
ca

l  

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

02
/2

00
3

A
ct

ua
l 

 O
ut

-tu
rn

 
20

02
/3

 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
03

/4
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
pr

-J
ul

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

 
N

um
be

r o
f P

en
al

ty
 C

ha
rg

e 
N

ot
ic

es
 is

su
ed

 –
 a

m
en

de
d 

in
di

ca
to

r 
21

,0
00

 
21

,3
29

 
21

,0
00

 
7,

74
6 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ef

fo
rt 

fro
m

 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 
 

N
um

be
r o

f P
en

al
ty

 C
ha

rg
e 

no
tic

e 
ap

pe
al

s 
ca

se
s 

“lo
st

” a
t 

ap
pe

al
 

B
as

el
in

e 
0.

24
%

 
0.

25
%

 
0.

08
%

 
 

43



P
Is

20
03

4P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

A
pr

Ju
ly

E
xc

ep
tio

ns
A

pp
en

di
x1

0.
do

c 

Pa
ge

 2
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

02
/2

00
3

A
ct

ua
l 

 O
ut

-tu
rn

 
20

02
/3

 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
03

/4
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
pr

-J
ul

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

 
St

re
et

 L
ig

ht
in

g 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f 

tim
e 

in
 r

ep
ai

rin
g 

st
re

et
 li

gh
t 

fa
ul

ts
 

co
m

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
au

th
or

iti
es

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 
10

 D
ay

s 
3.

49
 d

ay
s 

4.
5 

da
ys

 
3.

68
 d

ay
s 

Lo
w

er
 le

ve
l o

f f
au

lts
 

re
po

rte
d 

in
 s

um
m

er
 

 PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 
N

at
io

na
l: 

B
es

t V
al

ue
 

R
ef

 
Ta

rg
et

/In
di

ca
to

r 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

02
/2

00
3

A
ct

ua
l 

 O
ut

-tu
rn

 
20

02
/3

 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
03

/4
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
pr

-J
ul

 
C

om
m

en
ts

 

 
C

os
t/e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
V

10
7 

P
la

nn
in

g 
co

st
 p

er
 h

ea
d 

of
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
£1

1.
70

 
£1

7.
31

 
£1

9.
69

 
 

Th
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r 0
2/

03
 

an
d 

03
/0

4 
ar

is
es

 fr
om

 a
 

ch
an

ge
 in

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
on

 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 
ar

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t c
on

tro
l 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
 

44


